WRITTEN RESOLUTION

FOOD HUB (NES) LTD

(Company Number: SC620252)

(the "Company")

By written resolution of the Company in accordance with Chapter 2 of Part 13 of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act), the following resolutions were passed as special resolutions on 23rd May 2019:-

1. That the regulations contained in the printed document attached hereto, be adopted as the articles of association of the Company in substitution for and to the exclusion of the existing articles of association of

Director

Date: 23/5 / 2019

the Company.

WEDNESDAY

SCT

26/06/2019 COMPANIES HOUSE

#4



Company Number SC620252

The Companies Act 2006

Private Company Limited By Guarantee ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF FOOD HUB (NES) LIMITED Adopted by Special Resolution passed on 23rd May 2019

CMS Cameron McKenna LLP 6 Queens Road Aberdeen AB15 4ZT T +44 1224 622002 F +44 1224 622066

Bar

UK - 626645986.2

F +44 1224 622066

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	Defined Terms	1
2.	Objects of the Company and Liability of Members	2
Part 2 D	irectors	2
Director	s' Powers and Responsibilities	2
3.	Directors' General Authority	2
4.	Members' Reserve Power	2
5.	Directors May Delegate	3
6.	Board, Nomination And Appointment Of Directors	3
Decision	n-Making by Directors	4
7.	Directors to Take Decisions Collectively	4
8.	Written Resolution Of The Directors	4
9.	Calling a Meeting of the board and business to be discussed	5
10.	Participation in Meetings of the board	. 5
11.	Quorum for Meetings of the board	6
12.	Chairing of Meetings of the board	6
13.	No Casting Vote	6
14.	Conflicts of Interest	6
15.	Records of Decisions to be Kept	8
16.	Directors' Discretion to Make Further Rules	8
Appoint	ment of Directors	8
17.	Methods of Appointing Directors	8
18.	Termination of Director's Appointment	9
19.	Directors' Remuneration	9
20.	Directors' Expenses	10
Alternat	e Directors	10
21.	Appointment and removal of alternate directors	10
22.	Rights and responsibilities of alternate directors	10
23.	Termination of alternate directorship	11
Part 3 M	lembers	11
Becomi	ng and Ceasing to be a Member	11
24.	Applications for Membership	11
25.	Termination of Membership	11
General	Meetings	12
26.	Annual General Meeting	12
Part 4		12
27.	Means of Communication to be Used	12
28.	Company Seals	12
29.	Provision for Employees on Cessation of Business	
Director	s' Indemnity and Insurance	12

30.	Indemnity	12
31.	Insurance	13

The Companies Act 2006

Private Company Limited by Guarantee

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

FOOD HUB (NES) LIMITED

(COMPANY NUMBER SC620252)

ADOPTED ON 23RD MAY 2019

PART 1 INTERPRETATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

1. DEFINED TERMS

In the articles, unless the context requires otherwise:

"Appointed Director" has the meaning given in article 6.3;

"articles" means the company's articles of association;

"bankruptcy" includes individual insolvency proceedings in a jurisdiction other than England and Wales or Northern Ireland which have an effect similar to that of bankruptcy;

"board" means the board of directors of the company;

"chairman" has the meaning given in article 12.2.1;

"Companies Acts" means the Companies Acts (as defined in section 2 of the Companies Act 2006), in so far as they apply to the company;

"director" means a director of the company, and includes any person occupying the position of director, by whatever name called;

"document" includes, unless otherwise specified, any document sent or supplied in electronic form:

"electronic form" has the meaning given in section 1168 of the Companies Act 2006;

"member" has the meaning given in section 112 of the Companies Act 2006;

"Nominated Director" has the meaning given in article 6.2;

"ordinary resolution" has the meaning given in section 282 of the Companies Act 2006;

"participate", in relation to a board meeting, has the meaning given in article 10;

"special resolution" has the meaning given in section 283 of the Companies Act 2006;

"subsidiary" has the meaning given in section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006;

"vice chairman" has the meaning given in article 12.2.2; and

"writing" means the representation or reproduction of words, symbols or other information in a visible form by any method or combination of methods, whether sent or supplied in electronic form or otherwise.

Unless the context otherwise requires, other words or expressions contained in these articles bear the same meaning as in the Companies Act 2006 as in force on the date when these articles become binding on the company.

2. OBJECTS OF THE COMPANY AND LIABILITY OF MEMBERS

- 2.1 The primary objects of the company are to manage the development and delivery of a Food Hub for Innovation in Aberdeen and to do all such things as in the opinion of the board of directors of the Company are or may be incidental or conducive to doing so including (without limitation) achieving the following strategic objectives:
 - 2.1.1 create an entrepreneurial environment and infrastructure that inspires and supports companies to innovate and grow increasing product development based on market insights and technical know-how;
 - 2.1.2 establish a physical hub that will provide incubator space, commercial grade development kitchens, demonstrator space, co-working space and meet-up space;
 - 2.1.3 stimulate digital transformation investment across the food and drink industry supply chain to increase productivity in the food and drink sector;
 - 2.1.4 provide mentoring and professional input to support business leaders and build investor ready businesses; and
 - 2.1.5 increase the number of collaborations in the food and drink industry sector between academia and industry.
- 2.2 The liability of each member is limited to £1, being the amount that each member undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of its being wound up while he or she is a member or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member, for:
 - 2.2.1 payment of the company's debts and liabilities contracted before he or she ceases to be a member,
 - 2.2.2 payment of the costs, charges and expenses of winding up, and
 - 2.2.3 adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves.

PART 2 DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS' POWERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

3. DIRECTORS' GENERAL AUTHORITY

Subject to the articles, the directors are responsible for the management of the company's business, for which purpose they may exercise all the powers of the company.

4. MEMBERS' RESERVE POWER

- 4.1 The members may, by special resolution, direct the directors to take, or refrain from taking, specified action.
- 4.2 No such special resolution invalidates anything which the directors have done before the passing of the resolution.

5. DIRECTORS MAY DELEGATE

- 5.1 Subject to the articles, the directors may delegate any of the powers which are conferred on them under the articles:
 - 5.1.1 to such person or committee;
 - 5.1.2 by such means (including by power of attorney);
 - 5.1.3 to such an extent;
 - 5.1.4 in relation to such matters or territories; and
 - 5.1.5 on such terms and conditions;

as they think fit.

- 5.2 If the directors so specify, any such delegation may authorise further delegation of the directors' powers by any person to whom they are delegated.
- 5.3 The directors may revoke any delegation in whole or part, or alter its terms and conditions.
- 5.4 Committees to which the directors delegate any of their powers must follow procedures which are based as far as they are applicable on those provisions of the articles which govern the taking of decisions by directors.
- 5.5 The directors may make rules of procedure for all or any committees, which prevail over rules derived from the articles if they are not consistent with them.

6. BOARD, NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

- 6.1 The board of the Company shall comprise up to fifteen (15) in total which shall be nominated and subsequently appointed from time to time in accordance with article 6.2 to article 6.5.
- 6.2 Subject to article 6.3, the following persons shall be entitled to nominate the following number of persons to be a director of the company (an "Nominated Director") and if said person is not appointed, resigns or is removed as a director, to nominate another person in his or her place:

Nominating Person	Number of persons which may be nominated as a director
Opportunity North East Limited (company registration no. SC520110) ("ONE")	Two
University of Aberdeen (a Scottish charity, registration no. SC013683)	One
The Robert Gordon University (a Scottish charity, registration no. SC013781)	One
Scotland's Rural College (company registration SC431502)	One

- 6.3 The board (by simple majority decision and at its sole discretion) shall be entitled to appoint any person (an "Appointed Director") nominated as a Nominated Director and / or to terminate the existing appointment of any person appointed as an Appointed Director. In the event that:
 - 6.3.1 the appointment of a Nominated Director is not approved by the board; and/or
 - 6.3.2 the appointment of any Appointed Director is terminated by the board,

the relevant nominating person referred to in article 6.2 shall be entitled to nominate an alternative Nominated Director (subject always to the board's right not to approve the appointment of the Appointed Director in accordance with this article 6.3).

- 6.4 In addition, the board of the company may appoint up to nine (9) independent persons as additional directors.
- An executive of the Company (or in the absence of the Company having an executive such person as may be nominated by ONE acting in the capacity as the "ONE Food Hub Director" or any similar capacity as ONE may in its discretion determine) may be appointed as a director of the Company by ONE in addition to the directors set out in article 6.2 above.

DECISION-MAKING BY DIRECTORS

7. DIRECTORS TO TAKE DECISIONS COLLECTIVELY

- 7.1 The general rule about decision-making by directors is that any decision of the directors must be either a majority decision at a meeting or a decision taken in accordance with article 8.
- 7.2 If:
 - 7.2.1 the company only has one director, and
 - 7.2.2 no provision of the articles requires it to have more than one director,

the general rule does not apply, and the director may take decisions without regard to any of the provisions of the articles relating to directors' decision-making.

8. WRITTEN RESOLUTION OF THE DIRECTORS

- 8.1 A decision of the directors is taken in accordance with this article when all eligible directors indicate to each other by any means that they share a common view on a matter.
- 8.2 Such a decision may take the form of a resolution in writing, copies of which have been signed by each eligible director or to which each eligible director has otherwise indicated agreement in writing.
- 8.3 References in this article to eligible directors are to directors who would have been entitled to vote on the matter had it been proposed as a resolution at a meeting of the board.
- 8.4 A decision may not be taken in accordance with this article if the eligible directors would not have formed a quorum at such a meeting.

9. CALLING A MEETING OF THE BOARD AND BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED

9.1 Meetings of the board shall occur at least four times per year, on the date and at the time agreed pursuant to article 9.3 below (unless otherwise agreed by the directors). The directors may

- determine that a meeting of the board shall occur at the registered office of the company or a location otherwise determined by the chairman of the company.
- 9.2 No later than the final meeting of each year, the directors shall agree the schedule of meetings of the board for the forthcoming year.
- 9.3 Notice of any meeting of the board must:
 - 9.3.1 indicate its proposed date and time;
 - 9.3.2 indicate where it is to take place;
 - 9.3.3 include an agenda setting out the business proposed to be transacted at the meeting, prepared by the chairman. Any item not included in the agenda of a meeting may be considered or voted upon at that meeting of the board. The chairman shall ensure that sufficient information is included within such notice for items on the agenda to the directors to enable each director to take a decision on the issue in question at such meeting;
 - 9.3.4 attach any papers that are required to be reviewed by the directors during the course of the meeting of the board; and
 - 9.3.5 indicate if it is anticipated that directors participating in the meeting will not be in the same place, how it is proposed that they should communicate with each other during the meeting.
- 9.4 Notice of a meeting of the board need not be in writing and must be given to each director provided that, if a director is absent (whether habitually or temporarily) from the United Kingdom, the company has an address for sending or receiving documents or information by electronic means to or from that director outside the United Kingdom.
- 9.5 Notice of a meeting of the board need not be given to directors who waive their entitlement to notice of that meeting, by giving notice to that effect to the company not more than 7 days after the date on which the meeting is held. Where such notice is given after the meeting has been held, that does not affect the validity of the meeting, or of any business conducted at it.

10. PARTICIPATION IN MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

- 10.1 Subject to the articles, directors participate in a meeting of the board, or part of a meeting of the board, when:
 - 10.1.1 the meeting has been called and takes place in accordance with the articles, and
 - 10.1.2 they can each communicate to the others any information or opinions they have on any particular item of the business of the meeting.
- In determining whether directors are participating in a meeting of the board, it is irrelevant where any director is or how they communicate with each other and without prejudice to the foregoing, the directors may participate in meetings of the board by telephone or video conferencing or any other means of contemporaneous communication.
- 10.3 If all the directors participating in a meeting are not in the same place, they may decide that the meeting is to be treated as taking place wherever any of them is.

11. QUORUM FOR MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

- At a meeting of the board, unless a quorum is participating, no proposal is to be voted on, except a proposal to call another meeting.
- 11.2 The quorum for meetings of the board may be fixed from time to time by a decision of the directors and unless otherwise fixed it is nine.
- 11.3 If the total number of directors for the time being is less than the quorum required, the directors must not take any decision other than a decision:
 - 11.3.1 to appoint further directors, or
 - 11.3.2 to call a general meeting so as to enable the members to appoint further directors.

12. CHAIRING OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

- 12.1 The directors may appoint:
 - 12.1.1 a director to chair their meetings; and
 - 12.1.2 a director to be the vice chair of their meetings.
- 12.2 The person so appointed:
 - 12.2.1 in accordance with article 12.1.1 for the time being is known as the "chairman"; and
 - 12.2.2 in accordance with article 12.1.2 for the time being is known as the "vice chairman".
- 12.3 Unless otherwise determined by the directors, the chairman and the vice chairman shall preside in such positions for a period of three consecutive years from the date of such appointment in accordance with these articles.
- 12.4 The directors shall, at the board meeting scheduled prior to the termination of the chairman and vice chairman's positions pursuant to article 12.3 above, appoint a chairman and vice chairman in accordance with these articles, such appointment(s) to have effect upon the expiry of such positions pursuant to article 12.3 above.
- 12.5 If the chairman is not participating in a meeting of the board within ten minutes of the time at which it was to start, the vice chairman shall chair the meeting. If the vice chairman is also not participating in a meeting of the board within ten minutes of the time at which it was to start, the participating directors must appoint one of themselves to chair it, which shall be decided by a majority vote of those participating directors at such meeting.

13. NO CASTING VOTE

13.1 If the numbers of votes for and against a proposal are equal, the chairman or other director chairing the meeting will not have a casting vote.

14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

- 14.1 Without prejudice to such disclosure as is required under section 177 or section 182 of the Companies Act 2006, a director may be a party to, or otherwise interested in, any transaction or arrangement with the company. No director shall:
 - 14.1.1 be in breach of his or her duties as a director by reason only of his or her excluding himself or herself from the receipt of information, or from taking part in any decision-making or discussion (whether at meetings of the directors or otherwise), that will or

- may relate to any interest he or she may have in any such transaction or arrangement; or
- 14.1.2 be required to disclose to the company, or use in relation to the company's affairs, any confidential information obtained by him or her in connection with any such transaction or arrangement if his or her doing so would result in a breach of a duty or an obligation of confidence owed by him or her in that connection.
- 14.2 The general rule is that a director shall be entitled for quorum and voting purposes to participate in the decision-making process on any resolution concerning a matter in which he or she has, directly or indirectly, an interest or duty that conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the company, but this article shall not absolve him or her of any duty he or she may have pursuant to section 175 of the Companies Act 2006 and is without prejudice to the operation of this article 14 and subject to the terms of any authorisation made under article 14.3.
- 14.3 The directors may, if the quorum and voting requirements set out below are satisfied, authorise any matter that would otherwise involve a director breaching his or her duty under section 175 of the Companies Act 2006 to avoid conflicts of interest, and any director (including the director concerned) may propose that the director concerned be authorised in relation to any matter the subject of such a conflict provided that:
 - such proposal and any authority given by the directors shall be effected in the same way that any other matter may be proposed to and resolved upon by the directors under the provisions of the articles, except that the director concerned and any other director with a similar interest:
 - (a) shall not be counted for quorum purposes as taking part in the decision making process while the conflict is under consideration;
 - (b) may, if the other directors so decide, be excluded from taking part in the decision-making process while the conflict is under consideration; and
 - (c) shall not vote on any resolution authorising the conflict except that, if any such director does vote, the resolution will still be valid if it would have been agreed to if his or her vote had not been counted; and
 - 14.3.2 where the directors give authority in relation to such a conflict:
 - they may (whether at the time of giving the authority or at any time or times subsequently) impose such terms upon the director concerned as they may determine, including, without limitation, the exclusion of the director from the receipt of information or participation in any decision-making or discussion (whether at meetings of the directors or otherwise) related to the matter giving rise to the conflict;
 - (b) the director concerned will be obliged to conduct himself or herself in accordance with any terms imposed from time to time by the directors in relation to the conflict but will not be in breach of his or her duties as a director by reason of his or her doing so;
 - (c) the authority may provide that, where the director concerned obtains (otherwise than by virtue of his or her position as a director of the company) information that is confidential to a third party, the director will not be obliged to disclose that information to the company, or to use the information in

- relation to the company's affairs, where to do so would amount to a breach of that confidence:
- (d) the authority may also provide that the director concerned shall not be accountable to the company for any benefit that he or she receives as a result of the matter giving rise to the conflict;
- (e) the receipt by the director concerned of any remuneration or benefit as a result of the matter giving rise to the conflict shall not constitute a breach of the duty under the Companies Act 2006 not to accept benefits from third parties;
- (f) the terms of the authority shall be recorded in writing (but the authority shall be effective whether or not the terms are so recorded); and
- (g) the directors may withdraw such authority at any time.
- 14.4 For the purposes of this article, references to proposed decisions and decision-making processes include any meeting of the board or part of a meeting of the board.
- 14.5 Subject to article 14.6, if a question arises at a meeting of directors or of a committee of directors as to the right of a director to participate in the meeting (or part of the meeting) for voting or quorum purposes, the question may, before the conclusion of the meeting, be referred to the chairman whose ruling in relation to any director other than the chairman is to be final and conclusive.
- 14.6 If any question as to the right to participate in the meeting (or part of the meeting) should arise in respect of the chairman, the question is to be decided by a decision of the directors at that meeting, for which purpose the chairman is not to be counted as participating in the meeting (or that part of the meeting) for voting or quorum purposes.

15. RECORDS OF DECISIONS TO BE KEPT

The directors must ensure that the company keeps a record, in writing, for at least 7 years from the date of the decision recorded, of every unanimous or majority decision taken by the directors.

16. DIRECTORS' DISCRETION TO MAKE FURTHER RULES

Subject to the articles, the directors may make any rule which they think fit about how they take decisions, and about how such rules are to be recorded or communicated to directors.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

17. METHODS OF APPOINTING DIRECTORS

- 17.1 Any person who is willing to act as a director, and is permitted by law to do so, may be appointed to be a director in accordance with article 6.
- In any case where, as a result of death, the company has no members and no directors, the personal representatives of the last member to have died have the right, by notice in writing, to appoint a person to be a director.
- 17.3 For the purposes of article 17.2, where 2 or more members die in circumstances rendering it uncertain who was the last to die, a younger member is deemed to have survived an older member.
- 17.4 Unless otherwise agreed by the directors, a director may only be appointed for a maximum period of three years, provided that after such time, such director whose appointment would otherwise

be terminated pursuant to article 18.2.2 below may be appointed for a further period of three years if approved by the directors in accordance with article 17.1 above.

Unless otherwise agreed by the directors, the maximum number of directors shall be fifteen (15).

18. TERMINATION OF DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT

- 18.1 A person ceases to be a director as soon as:
 - 18.1.1 that person ceases to be a director by virtue of any provision of the Companies Act 2006 or is prohibited from being a director by law;
 - 18.1.2 a bankruptcy order is made against that person;
 - 18.1.3 a composition is made with that person's creditors generally in satisfaction of that person's debts;
 - 18.1.4 a registered medical practitioner who is treating that person gives a written opinion to the company stating that that person has become physically or mentally incapable of acting as a director and may remain so for more than three months;
 - 18.1.5 by reason of that person's mental health, a court makes an order which wholly or partly prevents that person from personally exercising any powers or rights which that person would otherwise have;
 - 18 1 6 notification is received by the company from the director that the director is resigning from office, and such resignation has taken effect in accordance with its terms;
 - in the case of an Appointed Director, the member which appointed such Appointed Director under article 6.2 ceases to be a member of the company.
- 18.2 Without prejudice to article 18.1, directors appointed in accordance with these articles shall cease to be a director upon the expiry of three years from the date of such director's appointment unless:
 - 18.2.1 otherwise agreed by the directors; or
 - 18.2.2 such director whose office would otherwise be terminated has been appointed as director pursuant to article 17.4 above.

19. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

- 19.1 Only if a director is an employee of the company will that director be entitled to remuneration, which will be such remuneration as the directors determine:
 - 19.1.1 for their services to the company as directors, and
 - 19.1.2 for any other service which they undertake for the company.
- 19.2 Subject to article 19.1, such director's remuneration may:
 - 19.2.1 take any form, and
 - 19.2.2 include any arrangements in connection with the payment of a pension, allowance or gratuity, or any death, sickness or disability benefits, to or in respect of that director.
- 19.3 Unless the directors decide otherwise, directors' remuneration accrues from day to day.
- 19.4 Unless the directors decide otherwise, directors are not accountable to the company for any remuneration which they receive as directors or other officers or employees of the company's subsidiaries or of any other body corporate in which the company is interested.

20. DIRECTORS' EXPENSES

- 20.1 The company may pay any reasonable expenses which the directors properly incur in connection with their attendance at:
 - 20.1.1 meetings of directors or committees of directors,
 - 20.1.2 general meetings, or
 - 20.1.3 separate meetings of the holders of debentures of the company,

or otherwise in connection with the exercise of their powers and the discharge of their responsibilities in relation to the company.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

21. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

- 21.1 Subject to articles 21.2 and 21.3, any director may appoint as an alternate any other director, or any other person, to:
 - 21.1.1 exercise that director's powers; and
 - 21.1.2 carry out that director's responsibilities,

in relation to the taking of decisions by the directors, in the absence of the alternate's appointor.

- Any appointment or removal of an alternate must identify the proposed alternate and be effected by notice in writing to the company signed by his or her appointor, or in any other manner approved by the directors.
- 21.3 The identity of any alternate director to be appointed by an Appointed Director must be approved by the board of directors prior to such appointment.

22. RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

- 22.1 An alternate director may not act as alternate director to more than one director.
- 22.2 Except as the articles specify otherwise, alternate directors:
 - 22.2.1 are deemed for all purposes to be directors;
 - 22.2.2 are liable for their own acts and omissions;
 - 22.2.3 are subject to the same restrictions as their appointors; and
 - 22.2.4 are not deemed to be agents of or for their appointors

and, in particular (without limitation), each alternate director shall be entitled to receive notice of all meetings of directors and of all meetings of committees of directors of which his or her appointor is a member.

- A person who is an alternate is entitled, in the absence of his or her appointor, to form part of the quorum and vote as alternate (in addition to his or her own vote if he or she is a director and to any other vote he or she may have as alternate for another appointor) in any decision-making of the directors, but:
 - 22.3.1 only if his or her appointor is an eligible director in relation to that decision;
 - 22.3.2 not if he or she is himself or herself a director but is not so eligible; and

- 22.3.3 he or she shall not count as more than one director for the purposes of determining whether there is a quorum, whether in relation to a meeting of the directors or a unanimous decision.
- Where an alternate participates in a unanimous decision it is not necessary for his or her appointor also to participate in it.
- 22.5 An alternate director is not entitled to receive any remuneration from the company for serving as an alternate director except such part of the alternate's appointor's remuneration as the appointor may direct by notice in writing made to the company.
- 22.6 An alternate director is entitled to attend a maximum of two board meetings per annum in respect of a director.

23. TERMINATION OF ALTERNATE DIRECTORSHIP

An alternate director's appointment as an alternate terminates:

- 23.1.1 when the alternate's appointor revokes the appointment by notice to the company in writing specifying when it is to terminate;
- 23.1.2 when the board of directors confirms in writing to the alternate and the alternate's appointor that the alternate is no longer an approved person to be an alternate director of the company;
- 23.1.3 on the occurrence, in relation to the alternate, of any event which, if it occurred in relation to the alternate's appointor, would result in the termination of the appointor's appointment as a director;
- 23.1.4 on the death of the alternate's appointor;
- 23.1.5 when the alternate's appointor's appointment as a director terminates; or
- 23.1.6 when the alternate is removed in accordance with the articles.

PART 3 MEMBERS

BECOMING AND CEASING TO BE A MEMBER

24. APPLICATIONS FOR MEMBERSHIP

- 24.1 No person shall become a member of the company unless:
 - 24.1.1 that person is a director of the company; and
 - 24.1.2 that person has completed an application for membership in a form that has been sent to the company secretary and the board of directors shall be obliged to approve such application.

25. TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP

- 25.1 Membership is not transferable.
- A member may withdraw from membership of the company by giving 7 days' notice to the company in writing.
- Upon a director ceasing to be a director of the company, that person's membership shall automatically terminate on the termination of their appointment as a director.

25.4 Otherwise that person's membership terminates when that person dies.

GENERAL MEETINGS

26. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

26.1 There shall be no annual general meeting of members of the company.

PART 4

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

27. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION TO BE USED

- 27.1 Subject to the articles, anything sent or supplied by or to the company under the articles may be sent or supplied in any way in which the Companies Act 2006 provides for documents or information which are authorised or required by any provision of that Act to be sent or supplied by or to the company.
- 27.2 Subject to the articles, any notice or document to be sent or supplied to a director in connection with the taking of decisions by directors may also be sent or supplied by the means by which that director has asked to be sent or supplied with such notices or documents for the time being.
- 27.3 A director may agree with the company that notices or documents sent to that director in a particular way are to be deemed to have been received within a specified time of their being sent, and for the specified time to be less than 48 hours.

28. COMPANY SEALS

28.1 The company shall not have a seal.

29. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES ON CESSATION OF BUSINESS

29.1 The directors may decide to make provision for the benefit of persons employed or formerly employed by the company or any of its subsidiaries (other than a director or former director or shadow director) in connection with the cessation or transfer to any person of the whole or part of the undertaking of the company or that subsidiary.

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

30. INDEMNITY

- 30.1 Subject to article 30.2, a relevant director of the company or an associated company may be indemnified out of the company's assets against:
 - any liability incurred by that director in connection with any negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the company or an associated company,
 - any liability incurred by that director in connection with the activities of the company or an associated company in its capacity as a trustee of an occupational pension scheme (as defined in section 235(6) of the Companies Act 2006),
 - 30.1.3 any other liability incurred by that director as an officer of the company or an associated company.
- This article does not authorise any indemnity which would be prohibited or rendered void by any provision of the Companies Acts or by any other provision of law.

30.3 In this article:

- 30.3.1 companies are associated if one is a subsidiary of the other or both are subsidiaries of the same body corporate, and
- 30.3.2 a "relevant director" means any director or former director of the company or an associated company.

31. INSURANCE

The directors may decide to purchase and maintain insurance, at the expense of the company, for the benefit of any relevant director in respect of any relevant loss.

31.2 In this article:

- 31.2.1 a "relevant director" means any director or former director of the company or an associated company,
- a "relevant loss" means any loss or liability which has been or may be incurred by a relevant director in connection with that director's duties or powers in relation to the company, any associated company or any pension fund or employees' share scheme of the company or associated company, and
- 31.2.3 companies are associated if one is a subsidiary of the other or both are subsidiaries of the same body corporate.